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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium India
Private Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the cash flows statement
and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafier referred to as * the Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements read together with other notes thereon give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS™) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Informstion other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report including Annexures to Annual Report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether s vﬁ,xether;j ormation is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge 4bj ihg the course of audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. = “‘l\)
gl
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilitics for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other Comprehensive
Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statement based on our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsi expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financi ystem in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. o




» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid financial
statement;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i}(vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statemgntsTom
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian A€e o 2
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-B”; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid
by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence, reporting required as per provisions of
section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements ~ Refer Note 30 (B) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
2025;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on the reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to
our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement.

(b) The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultlmate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of - Hitmate Beneﬁmanes Based on reasonable




vi.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend
declared and/or paid during the year the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit
trail feature is not enabled for certain master table and direct change to the underlying
database using privileged/ administrative access rights in respect of one of the software, as
described in note 41 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of performing
our procedures, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
cases where the audit trail feature was enabled or audit trail not preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No",si

CA. Devesh Sharma"
Partner

M. No. 517638
UDn\?: 24551 FE3GR MIXY 2624

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19" May 2025




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Member of CMR-TOYOTSU
Aluminium India Private Limited (‘the company’) on the financial statements for the
year ended 315 March 2025.

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report for the year ended 315 March 2025.

i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by
which all PPE are verified in a phased manner over a period of four years. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, PPE were physically verified by the Management during the
year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, certain discrepancies were noticed on such verification between the
book records and the physical verification. These identified discrepancies
have been properly dealt with in the books of account and appropriately
disclosed in the financial statements, wherever applicable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, the title deeds of all immovable
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are disclosed in
the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year,

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.




iii}

vi)

vii)

(a) During the year, management has conducted physical verification of
inventories at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees
five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company in respect of current assets held by it and offered as
security with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company of respective quarters and no material
discrepancies have been observed on verification of same with books of
accounts,

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the company did not grant any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
unsecured to the companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. However, the company has made investment in other company during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(c) to (f) of the order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the investments made, during the year are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security provided.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have
been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the records of the Company, the company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employee’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service Tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and any other material
statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amount payable in respect of Goods & Service tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of custo 'éy‘(:dﬂ-t 40 N xcise, value added tax, Cess and
other material statutory C}; &

direars as at 315 March, 2025 for a



(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the company examined by us, the dues outstanding of
income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute
are as follows:-

Name of the Nature of Dues Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
Statue (in Rs}) amount relates | is pending
Tamil Nadu Demand raised on 12,14,655/- F.Y 2015-16 Commissioner
Value added account of mismatch (Appeal) (ST)
Tax Rules 2007 | of turnover Chennai
GST Act, 2017 | Demand raised under | 1,10,62,495/- | F.Y. 2018-19 GST Appellate
section 73 of GST Authority, Tamil
Act Nadu
GST Act, 2017 | Demand raised under | 14,50,000/- F.Y. 2024-25 State Tax Officer
section 129 & 130 of Salem
GST Act
GST Act, 2017 | Demand raised under | 3,29,96,907/- | F.Y. 2019-20 GST Appellate
section 73 of GST Authority, Tamil
Act Nadu
Income Tax Act, | Demand raised under | 4,37,25,487/- } F.Y.2020-21 CIT (Appeals)
1961 section 68 of Income
Tax Act
viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

the Income Tax Act, 1961,

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
Financial Institution, Bank, government (both state and central). The company
does not have any outstanding debenture during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

{(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not taken any term loan during the

year. Hence, reporting under cla RE c) of the Order is not applicable.
RN




xi)

xii)

xii)

Xiv)

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not taken any funds during the year, from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its associates.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, company does
not have any securities held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

() According to information and explanations given to us and based upon the
audit procedures performed during the year, no fraud by the company or any
fraud on the Company by its officers/femployees have been noticed or reported
during audit.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us by the management,
there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the company during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc.
as required by the accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

(@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

date, for the period under audit. . d.v?‘“
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Xv)

xvi)

Xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with directors.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable and hence the
provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
para 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(xvi)(b) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

¢) The Company is not engaged in Core Investment Company as defined in
regulation made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on para 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

d) There are no other company as CIC as a part of the group, hence the
requirement to report on para 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during
the year,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section (5) of Section 135 of the s%i,d Ach B ordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicgbl %g \g
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{b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous
financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of
the said financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the
Act.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner

M. No. 517638
UDIN: 25 513628 BM [%Y (262

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19" May 2025



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Financial
Statement of CMR-TOYOTSU Aluminium India Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“tlie Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CMR-TOYOTSU
Aluminium India Private Limited (*the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s interna] financial controls system over financial
reporting. '




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Firancial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accouffaniiny,

)

CA. Devesh Sharmd
Partner
M. No. 517638

UDIN: 254517698 BMIRKNYGE262Y

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19" May 2025




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN:U3TIO0HR2012PTCOL6421
(Amount in Rupees Lalhs, untess otherwise stated)

Particulars MNolcs Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant & equipment 3 10.667.23 10,343.17
Capital work in progress 3 39.35 870,98
Right-ol-Use Assets 3 1,748.31 1,253.86
Financial assels
i. Invesiments 5a 95.00 76.00
ii. Loans 5b - 263
iii. Other financial assets 6 159.54 205,62
Non Current tax assets {ne1) 436.50 43288
QOtlter non-current assels B 107.56 60.17
13,253.49 13,745.31
Current assels
{nventarics 9 11,420.55 9,056.25
Finaneial assets
i. Loans 5b 389 250
ii. Trade Receivables 10 16,006.08 11,950.73
iii. Cash and cash cquivalents 11 (i} 37.61 49,58
iv. Bank balances other tha (iii) above 11 (i) 58.10 259]
v, Other finmicial assets 6 13493 38.66
Current Tax Assets 51.39 3.4
Qilher current assets 8 4.205.29 2.194.76
31,917.84 23.350.43
Assels held for sale 49.56 4.03

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Other equity
i. Retained camings
Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilitics
|Financial linbitities

i. Borrowings

ii. Lease liability
Deferred tax linbility (net)
Lonp Tenu Provisions

Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
i. Bormrowings
ii. Lease tiability
iii. Trade payables
-Dugc to micro small and small entetprises
-Ducs to oibers
iv. Qcher financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities(ner)
Shon eom Provisions
Otlier curvent liabilitics

Total Liabilities
Total cquity and labilities

15,220.99

37,108,77

12 9.650.00 9.650.00

13,136.71 11,385.25

22,786.71 21.035.25

13 - 600.55

40 - 20853

7 629.16 62270

14 53.05 18.07

682,21 1,569.85

i3 16.098.43 6,904.21

40 - 68.28

16

93.83 3917

4,816.11 1.947.50

17 231.92 33437
13 - -

14 35.58 55.18

15 476.10 3.13496

21,751.97 14,503.67

22,434.18 16,073.52

45,220.89

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of these Mnancial statements

As per our repont of even date

For M/s Gael Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N

v

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
Membership No:- 517638

Place. Faridabad
Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRI

1,
b \gn:;w{a[/
Finmneil Officer

..
a\yushig'ermn

Company Secretary
M. No - A73329

37,108.77

VATE LIMITED

b
Sumit Gupta
Chicf Executive Officer



CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN:U3TI00HR2012PTCO46421
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particufars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
REVENUE

Revenue fram cperations 19 1.59.981.19 1,37,772.96
Other income 20 499.23 421.13
Total income 1.60.-180.42 1.38.194.09
EXPENSES

Cost of raw material and componenis conswmed 21 1.43.161.47 1,16,883.73
Purchase of traded goods 22 3,271.84 4,978.03
[IncreaseyDecrease in inventories of finished goods 13 (1.845.19) 952,34
Employee benefils expense 24 2.456.53 2,551,712
Finanee costs 25 1,399.26 2016.15
Pepreciation and amorization expense 26 1,210.60 1.166.93
Cither expenses 7 3.486.71 §.139.55
Total expenscs 1.58.141,22 1,36.688.45
Profit before tax 2.339.20 1.505.64
Tax expensc: 7
Current tax 585.62 365.09
Tax Earlier Year 0.08 {23.17
Dreferred tax (Credit¥charge relating to earlier years . .89
Dreferred tax {Creditycharpe 5.35 16.96
Profit for the year 1,748.15 1.124.87
Other Comprehicasive Income 38

Items that will not be ceclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement pgains on defined benefit plan 442 8.20
Income 1ax effect {L11) (2.06)
Income tax relating to ilems that will be classified to profit or loss - -
Qther comprehensive Profivloss 3.31 6.14
Total Comprehensive Inceme for the year 1,751.46 1,131.01
Earnings per share:(nominal value per share of Rs 10 each) 29

1) Basic 1.81 1.1
2) Dilwed 1.81 1.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Teport of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- D40714N

e

CA. Devesh Shartma
Partner
Membership No:- 517638

Place: Faridabad
Dale:

Y Raglia

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors

of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Muofian /
Director

8
Chief Finan

AyushiMerma
Company Sccretary
M. No - A73329

Dircclor
DIN 07175149

%

Sumit Gupta
Chief Excoulive Officer




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUNM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cnsh Flows [or the vear ended March 31, 2025
CIN:U3H00IIR2012PT CO46421

(Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwisc stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Mow from operating activitics
Profit before tax 2.339.20 1.505.64
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amornisation 1.210.60 1,166.93
interest Income {17.04) 1265.15)
Other Incomprehensive income - 8.20
Loss/{ Profit) on sale of Mixed asset 200.75 .
Lease modification (26.26) -
Finange costs 1.399.26 2.016.15
2,767.31 2,923.13
Operating Profit before adjustmenis 5,106.51 4,428.76
Adjustments:
{Increase) Decrease in inventories (2.354.30) 794.57
(Increase) in trade receivables (4.055.35) (1.452.0M
(Increase) in Financial assets (140.50) (3.90)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (1,964.45) 373.60
Increase/{ Decrease) in trade payables 2949.53 (5,202.43}
{Decrease)Increase in Other financial liabilities (100.25) 490
(DecreasclIncrease in Other liabilities (4,674.38) 4,772.57
(Decreasc) Increase in Provisions (14.63) 927
Change in the adjustments (10,354.33) (703.4%
Cash penerated from opcrations 15.247.82) 3,725.28
Less : Taxes paid {609.70) 1471.42)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 15.857.52) 3.253.86
Cash Mlow from investing activities:
Purchase of propenty. plant and equipment including CWIP {958.21) (1,336.55)
Praceeds from disposal of prepeny . plant and equipment 2.43)) 8,
Investment inn Isharays Energy Private Limited (19.00) {76.00)
Interest received 13.54 266.14
Investment in fixed deposits (32.19) 56.09
Net cash generated/{uscd) in investing activitics: (B) (998.29} (1,081.41)
Net eash fow from linancing activitics:
Proceeds/{ Repayment) fromvof borrowings (including finance lease) net 8.220.85 (108.64)
Interest paid {1.383.01) 12.023.42)
Net cash penerated/(used) from financing activities: (C) 6.843.84 (2.132.06)
Net change in Cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1197 40.38
Cash & cash equivalents as at the bepinning of year (refer Note 11(i}) 490.58 9.19
Casl & cash cquivalents as at end of the year (refer Nate 11(ih 37.68 49.58
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Cash on hand {Naote 1 1{i)} 2.63 3.to
On current accounts (Note 11¢i)) 3498 46,48

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial stalements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAIS FRN - 0407140

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
Membership No:- 517638

Place: Faridabad
Date:

For and an belalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Dirccldr
DIN 07175149

3
Sumit Gupta
Chicl Exccutive Qficer

Avushi Yernia
Company Secretary
M. No- A73329



CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN:U37100HR2012PTCO46421

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity Share capita) Other equity- Reserves and Surplus
Particulars . Total equity
No. of shares Amount Rcln!ncd Total
carnings
As at March 31, 2023 9,65,00,000 2.650.00 10,254.24 10,2542 19,904.24
Add: Profit for tlie year - - 1,124.87 112487 1,124.87
Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for e vear - - 6.14 6.14 6.14
As at March 31, 2024 9,65,00,000 9,650.00 11,385.25 11,385,258 21,035.25
Add: Profit for Uhe year - - 1.748.15 1,748.15 1,748.15
Add: Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the vear - - .31 3.31 3.31
As at March 31, 2025 9,65.00,000 9,650.00 13,136.71 13.136.71 22,786.71

The accompanying notes arc an inlegral part of (e fancial statements.
As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associntes
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN - 040714N

c
O | prN 04G714N
*\ FARIDABAD

CA. Devesh Sharma
Parner
Membership No:- 517638

Place: Faridabad
Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Y

& Mokan Agabwal ©

DIN 07175149

s
& umit{upla

al hief Exccutive Officer

Ayushi Yerma
Company Secretary
M. No - A73329




CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN:U37100HR2012PTC046421

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

L. Corporate information

CMR-TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) is a Private Limiled Company
domiciled in India, incorporated w.e.f. 4th July 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The company is
manufacturer of Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys.

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on May,19 20235,

2. Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division
11 of Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013 (IND AS compliant Schedule [11), to the extent applicable

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, except
for the certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have'been measured at fair value as per the requirements
of the Ind AS.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.
The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, are disclosed in note 3.25.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or *Rs.’), except
per share data and unless stated otherwise and rounded off to nearest lakhs.

3. Summary of material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to all the years presented
in the financial statements.

3.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affaris (“MCA™) has carried out amendments to the following accounting

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has carried out amendments to the following accounting standards.
The effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

(i} Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts; The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance
Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards}
Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback; The MCA notified the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases,
with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leascback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessce does not recognisc any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains.




CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN :U37100HR2012PTC046421

{(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheel based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
is classified as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

i1) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expecled to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

jii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the scttiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.3 Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-moneltary items that are measured in terms of historical costina foreign curreney are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in QCI or profit
or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN :U37100HR2012PTC046421

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to gencrate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whotle:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For asseis and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowesl
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement,
such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, and significant liabilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts
and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of
each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.




CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN :U37100HR2012PTC046421

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
3.5Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of produects

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates. The Company coilects
Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the
Company. Hence, these are excluded from the revenue.

The Company had assumed that recovery of excise duty (applicable till June 30, 2017) flows to the Company on its
own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production,
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own
account, revenue included excise duty till June 30, 2017.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives, ete. The Company estimates the
variable consideration with respect to above based on an analysis of accumulated historical experience. The Company
adjusts estimate of revenue at the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration expected to receive changes
or when the consideration becomes fixed.

Sale of services

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference 1o the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized at measured value of conversion charges.
The Company collects service tax/ GST on job work on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic
benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated futurc cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Export incentive

Export incentive under the EPCG scheme are accounted in the year of export of goods considering certainty in the
collection of export proceeds.

3.6 Government grant




CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an assels item, including non-monetary grants at fair value,
are recognised in the balance sheel as deferred income in the liability side of balance sheet. The grant set up as deferred
income is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis. Government grant relates to required it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs.

The company recognised government grants related to EPCG obligation till the date of transition is recognised as
deferred government grant and is taken to income on fulfilment of export obligation.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the
current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable jnterest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense comprise of current and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax asscts and liabilities arc measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and {oss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the fiability method on temporary differcnces between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for ail taxable temporary differences, except:

(a) When the deferred tax Jiability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or fiability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is prabable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: '

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized lo the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will ailow the deferred tax asset Lo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {cither in “OC!* or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE")

An item of PPE is recognised as an assel, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price
(including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, frechold land is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant parts are required to be replaced at regular
intervals, the Company recognises such parts a5 separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their
specific useful life. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet
and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is availabie for use, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations where
such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow
to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separale asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of Schedule I! of the
Companics Act, 2013.

Individual items of property, piant and equipment costing upto Rs 10,000/ is charged to the statement of profit and
Joss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated
over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at each
reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and / or depreciation method are
accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful
life. The cost and the accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are de-
recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are included in the statement of profit and loss
within other expenses / other income.

3.8 Intangible nsscts
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assels are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software is
capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license not
exceeding six years from the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If
expected useful life is significant different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

39 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
to the extent regarded as an adjustment Lo the barrowing costs.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial asscts

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o the assel. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recenl market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are ailocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is caiculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow prajections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasis, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a stcady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as
a component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the
extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the revalued
amount, in which case the reversc is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3.11 Leases

The Company assesses at contracl inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease

liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received.

If ownership of the Jeased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies 3.24 on Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ity Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities raeasured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the fease term. The lease payments are fixed payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. 1n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g-, changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

fii) Short-term leases and leases of Iow-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases except in case of lease contracts
with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the company to continue using the leased premises for a
period longer than the 11 months and considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal
of the lease term for future periods, thus basis the substance and economics of the arrangements, management believes
that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been determined considering the
period for which management has an economic incentive to use the leased asset (i.e. reasonable certain to use the asset
for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period is based on management assessment
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of various factors including the remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

3.12 Inventorics

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with Ind AS 2 — Inventories

Raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and traded
goods is determined on the basis of weighted average basis. However, inventory pertaining to stores & spares are valued
at cost.

During the year, the Company changed its inventory cost formula for raw material and traded goods from FIFO to
weighted average method to provide more reliable and relevant information. The change has been accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, and its impact is not
material, therefore has not been accounted in the financial statements of current year.

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and direct
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on
a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cosls of
completion and estimated costs necessary 0 make the sale.

313 Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past cvent,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

I the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increasc in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cosl.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to refiect the current best cstimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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3.14 Contingent Liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence of noN-0CcCUITENce of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past cvents where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.15 Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salarics, bonuses, contribution to plans, defined benefit plans
and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the Company employees.

i) Defined contribution plans — Provident fund
Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards provident fund which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement
of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable 1o the scheme is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset 10 the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plan is caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have carned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under
this plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
are recognised immediately in the batance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Al other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefit
expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtaiiment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

jii) Other employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of employment.
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Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expecls to pay asa
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats compensated absences
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such
long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, (o the extent it does not have an
unconditional right lo defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

3.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

in order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commils to purchase or sell the
assel.

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objectiveis to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business modei whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount outstanding. Further in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments the subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income

iif) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value through profit or
loss.

Financiai liabilitics
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Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria under ind AS
109 are satisfied. All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximale
the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracis issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantec contracts are recognised initially asa liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantec. Subsequently, the liability is measured

at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortization.

b) Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR methad. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosls that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-vecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes 8 financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under IND AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of the financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contracl is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial instruments

in determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those
instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalonc balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seitle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settie the liabilities simuitaneously.

317  Investment in Subsidiary

s[nvestments in subsidiaries Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Upon first-time adoption of Ind
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AS, the Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiarics at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its
deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 201 6. .

3.18 Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative, Any gains or [osses arising from changes in
the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash fows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-lerm deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

3.20 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a lability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity.

3.21 Segment

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chicf operating
decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one
segment "Aluminium based Dic Cast Alloys.™,

3.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of the Company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they
are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

323  Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
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The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
inciuding both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The
Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in Note 9.

3.24  Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts, forward commodity
contracts and currency future contracts to hedge risks associaled with foreign currency fluctuations and
commodity price risks. The Company also holds commodity future contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in
price of commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so
designated but is ineffective, is recognized on balance sheet and measured initially at fair value. Subsequent to
initial recognition, derivatives are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair velue is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is ncgative.

Hedge Accounting

The Company designates forward commuodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the exposure to changes
in prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and existing inventory.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an
ongoing basis.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge incflectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge effectivencss criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging instrument and the hedge
item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a
hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged
risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

3.25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the rcported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjusiment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements:

a) Contingencies
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Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one
or more uncertain future events occur or fail o oceur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome
of future events.

b) Revenue recognition and presentation

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has exposure to the significant
risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if it is acting as
a principal or as an agent. The Company has concluded that they operating on a principal to principal basis in all its
revenue arrangements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying vaiue of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the
CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimales are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-cmployment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is bascd on publicly available mortality tables
for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response 10 demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increascs are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

c) Allowanee for urcolleetible trade receivables

Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems
them not to be collectible.

d) Property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 4(a).

G
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e) Intangibte assets
The carrying value of intangible assets has been disclosed in note 4(b).

1)) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Computers
. Leaschold _— Plant and Office Furniture & ant data . Capital work
Particulars Land Buildings cquipment Equipment fixtures processing Vehicles Total in progress # ROU Asscts
machines

Cost
As at March 31, 2023 - 5,380.36 8,608.09 69.31 78.66 52,99 160.67 14,350.08 1,269.72 981.30
Additions - 439 1,581.16 12.66 . 5.84 543 1,609.48 - 416.09
Disposals / adjustments - - (69.92) (0.09) - (2.65) (0.39) (73.05) (398.74) -
As at March 31, 2024 - 5.384.75 10,119.33 §1.88 78.66 56.18 165.71 15,886.51 870.98 1.397.39
Additions - 66.56 1,125.00 0.89 0.67 30 1.16 1,198.20 - 850.85
Disposals / adjustments - - (368.90) (1.06) {0.11) (8.49) - (378.56) (831.63) (416.09)
As at March 31,2025 - 545131 10,875.43 81.71 79.21 51.61 166.87 16,706.15 30,35 1,832.15
Depreciation,
As at March 31, 2023 - 1,026.48 2,841.66 32.22 14.99 36.42 68.41 4,020.17 - 64.56
Charge for the year - 195.21 847.01 10,78 7.52 8.44 18.34 1,087.31 - 78.97
Disposals / adjustments - - (61.79) (0.08) - (1.91) (0.36) {64.14) - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 1,221.69 3,626.88 42,92 22.51 42.95 86.39 5,043.34 - 143.53
Cliarge for the year - 156.30 975.76 11.22 6.97 7.07 18.49 1,175.81 - 3736
Disposals / adjustments - - (17151 (0.99) (0.10} (7.63) . (180.23) - (97.09)
As at March 31, 2025 - - 1,377.99 4.431.13 53.15 29.38 42.39 104.88 6,038.92 - 83.80
Net hlock
As at March 31, 2024 - 4,163.06 6,492.45 38.96 56.15 13.24 79.32 10,843.17 870.98 1,253.86
As at March 31, 2025 - 4,073.32 G.444.31 28.56 49.83 9.23 61.99 10.667.23 39.35 1,748.35
Nole

# The numbers reported are net (addition-defetion).

1) Term loan from HDFC Bank is secured by first pari-passu charge over the cntire fixed
No A=4 & A-5 Sipcot Industrial Park, Piltaipakkam, Chennai, Vallam and faclory land at G-108 Pt. SIPCOT Industeial Park, Vallam - Vadapgal, Chennai.

) Cash credit and warking capitat Credit facility is secured by way of sccond pani-passu

SIPCOT Indusirial Park at Pillaipakkam, Sriperumpudur, District Kanchipuram, Chennai and equitable morigage of factory and land and building av G-108/72, Sipcot Industrial Patk, Valla

Chennai,

4, Intangible Asscls

. Camputer

Particulars Software
Gross block
As at March 31, 2023 49.06
Additions -
Disposals/ adjustments -
As at March 31, 2024 49.06
Additions -
Disposals -
As ot March 31, 2025 49.06
Amaortization
As at March 31, 2023 48.44
Charge for the year 0.62
Disposals/ adjustments
As at March 31, 2024 49.06
Charge for the year -
Disposals -
As at March 31,2025 49.06
Net block

As at March 31, 2024
As at Mavch 31, 2025

Capital Work in Progress ngeing schedule

As at March 31' 2025
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Particulars I:.nss than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Tatal
Year Years
Project in progress 39.35 . - - 39.35
Projects temporarily suspended - - . - -
Total 39.35 - - - 39.35
As at March 31' 2024
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
Project in progress 488.85 344.06 38.07 - 870.98
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 488.85 344,06 38.07

| = 870.98

assets of the said company. present and future including Equitable Montgage of factory land and building at Plot

charge over the fixed assets including Equitable morigage of factory land & building at Plot No. A, A5
m-Vadagal,
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7. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for tie year ended March 31, 2025 and 31 March, 2024 arc:

Statement of profit and loss:

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Tax Expense:
Current income tax charpe 585.62 365.09
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences relating to 535 16.56
cwirent period
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences relating 1o earlier - 21.89
peripds
Ieome Tax pertzining to previous period 0.08 (23.17}
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 591.05 380.76
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the period:
Asat Asat
March_31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax on net (gains¥loss on measuretient of defined benefit plans (1.11) (2.06)
Income tax charged to OCI (.1 {2.06)
Reconcilintion of tax expiense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indin's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024,
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax from conlinuing operations 2.339.20 1,505.64
Accounting profit before income tax 2,339.20 1,505.64
At India’s statulory income tax rzte of 25.168% 588.73 373.94
Deferred/current tax for earlier years 0.08 (1.28)
Effect of expenditure not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 12.03 14,08
Others (9.47) (10.97)
At the elfective income tax rate of 25.1G8% (March 31, 2024: 25.168%) 591.37 380.76
Inconse tax expense reported in the statement of profil and loss 591.05 380.76
Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
Deferred tax: As at Asat As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax (Linbilities)
Property, plant and equipment (661.86) (688.85) 3699 {45.75)
On unreatised portion of forward premium on derivative contracts # (16.96) (0.08) (16.38) (0.08)
Right of Use Assets - (87.28) 8728 (37.27)
Deferred tax Assets
Provision for employee benefits and preliminary expenses 22.31 2599 {3.68) 234
Provision for bad debts 22.68 22,68 - -
On lease liabilities - 9232 (92.32) 92.32
On unreatised portion of forward premium on derivalive contracts # B - - (10.94)
Deferred tax created on IND AS adjustments - - - (0.31)
TDS deduction expenditures 4.67 12.53 (7.86) 8.78
Tota) delferred tax asscts/linbilities) (Net)} (629.16) (622.70) 476.10 L0910
& Deferred 1ax assct on finn comnilment, inventory and derivative asset/liability has been disclosed on nct basis.
ReNeeted in the balance sticet as follows:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assels 49.66 153.51
Deferred tax linbility [678.82) (776.21)
Deferred Tax Lisbilities/{Asset) (Net) 629.16 622.70
Reconciliation of deferved tax liabilities (net):
Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 622.70 581.78
Tax {income)expense during the period recopnized in profit or loss 5.35 38.85
Tax (income)expense during the period recognized in OCI 111 2,06
Closing batance of deferred tax liabilities/(Assct) (Net) 629.16 622.70

The Campany offsets tax assets and liabilities if snd only if it las a legally enforceable right to sci off current tax assets and current 1ax liabilities and the deferred tax

assets and deferred 12x liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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5(a). Investments

Investment (unquoted)

As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Investment in Isharays Energy Private Limited* 95.00 76.00
950000 (March 31, 2024: 760000) equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
95.00 76.00
During the year the Co has made investment of Rs 19 Laes (March 31, 2024: Rs 76 Lacs) towards purchase of eq shares in Ishamys Energgy Pvt lid. This investment has been made in persuant to
purchase of solar encrygy power plant with Isharays Energy Pvi Ld
5(b). Loans {at amortized cost)
Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 March 35,2025  March 31, 2024
Loans to cmployees
Unsacured, considered good - 2.63 3.89 250
- 2.63 3.89 2.50
6, Qther Financial assets Mon-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Derivative instruments at fair value
Mark to market gain on commadity futures - Receivable from holding company - - 131.43 -
(15} Unsccurced, considered good unless otherwise stated (at amortized cost)
Sceurity deposits 159.54 183.33 - 0.12
Interest accrucd on fixed deposits and others - 20 3.50 0.00
Depasits with remaining maturity ol more than 12 months (Note 11)** - 20 - -
Quality claim receivable . - - 38.54
Total 159.54 205,62 134.93 38.66
** Deposils with remaining maturity of more than 12 monthis are held as 10% margin moncy against the bank guarantees for provisional assessments of Custom duly.
8, Other Current/Non Current assets
Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024  March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered zood
Balance with Govenmient Authoritics : . - 1,036.46 40542
MEI!S Licenses in hand - - 0.00 0.37
Capital advances . 1.58 - -
Coniract Asscts - Unbilled Revenue - - 245.35 37.60
Advance 1o employees against expenses - - 4,56 5.85
Advance (o supplicrs
-Related Parties* (Refer Note 31) - - 1,920.19 369.63
+Others - - 903.62 1,285.82
Prepaid expenses 107.560 58.59 21.21 30.71
Finn commitment for purchase of inventory of raw materials - - - 0,62
Export Incentive Recoverable - - 13.72 1.58
Deposit towards back wages - - 54 33.63
Expenses recoverable - - 0.54 3.53
Total 107.56 60.17 4,205.29 2,194.76
Note :-
Entire other curent asscts of the Company have been hypothecated/montgaged 1o secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 13).
9. [nventories
Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Raw materials# 8.344.79 8.017.13
{Including Rs 3,190.77 Lacs (March 31, 2024; Rs 2.450.04 Lacs) in transit¥
Finishied goods* 2.430.01 584.82
{Including Rs 1,537.73 Lacs (Mar 31, 2024: Nil) in transit
Stores and spares** 645.75 464.30
{Including Rs 0.03 Lacs (Mar 31,2024: Rs Nil) in transit)
Total 11,420,55 9.066,24

# in transit inclede Rs 162,98 Lacs (Mar 31,2024: Nil) from holding company "CMR Green Technologies Lid”
# in transit include Rs 36.23 Lacs (Mar 31,2024: Nil) from holding company "CMR Eco Aluninium India Pvi Lid”

# Fair value hedges are mainly used to hiedge the exposure to change in fir value of commodily price risks. The fair value adjustment cemains pant of the carrying value of inventory and taken to profit

and loss when the inventory is cither sold or consumed.
The Company has extended fair value hedge accounting o its inventory which fonms part of raw material during the year.

Note:-

All type of stocks lying in the Company’s factories, godowns, elsewhere (including GIT) have been hypothecated/mengaged to secure borrowings of the Company (refer nate 13).
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10. Trade Receivables
Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Receivables from others 1592253 11.957.49
Less: Provision for doubtfl debis 50.10 90.10
et Receivables 15,832.43 11,867.39
Receivables from related parties {Refer Note 31) 173.66 83.34
Total 16,006.08 11,950.73
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are duc for payment
Unsecured, considered good 64.18 69.86
64.18 69.86
Other reccivables
Unsecured., considered good 15.941.90 11,880.87
15,941.90 11,880.87
Total Trade reccivables 16.006.08 11,950.73
1. For tenms and conditions relaling to related party receivables, refer Note 31
2, Trade reccivables are generally non-interest bearing and are gencrally on tenns of 0 to 90 days
3. Entire irade receivables of the Company have been hypothecated” mortgaged to secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 13)
Trade Receivable ageing scheduole ;
As at March 31, 2025
Qutstanding lor the following pertods from duc date of payment
Particulars Current but not| Less than 6 6 Monihs- 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2.3 Years Mm:c than 3 Total
duc Manths Years
Undispuled Trade Receivables - considered pood 12.965.38 2.976.52 21.02 15.962.92
_Uudlspulpd Tmfic chcewables = which have significant ) 43.16 R 1316
increase in eredil sk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
Dispuied Trade receivables — which have sipnificant increase in i} R . R R .
credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Tatal 12,965.38 2,976.52 21.02 43.16 - 16.006.08
As at March 31, 2024
Cutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but not| Less than & 6 Months- 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
due Months Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered pood 11,156.57 724.30 66.39 3.57 - 11.950.73
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significans j i -
inerease in eredil risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - . - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in ) . . R . .
credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 11,156.57 724,30 66.29 3.57 - 11,950.73
11. (i) Cash and ¢ash equivalents
Asat As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 2.63 R
Balances with banks:
- Current account 34.98 46.48
Total 31.61 49.58
(i#) Other bank balance
Details of other bank balances is ns follows:
Asat Asut
Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months 58.10 2591
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 mombs® - 20.28
58.10 46.19
Less : Disclosed under Qther financial assets {refer note 6} - (20.28)
58.10 2591

**Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 momhs Rs 25.60 Lacs (March 31,2024: Rs 2.40 Lacs) are held as margin money against the Letier of credit and Bank Guarantees and Deposits with
remaining maturity of Tess than 12 months of Rs 32.50 Lacs {March 31.2024: Rs 21 Lacs) pertains 1o unspent amaunt on CSR deposited.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
- Curent account
Total

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
3263 210
34.98 7.08
31.61 9.18
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12, Share Capital

Authorized shares
96,500,000 (31 March 2024: 96,500,000} equity shares of Rs.10 cach

Issued shares, subscrilied and fully paid -up shares
96,500,000 (31 March 2024;95,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach

a. Reconcilintion of no. of shares

Equity Shares
Al tle beginning of the period/year

Issued during the period/year
At the end of the period/year

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
9.650,00 9.650.00
9.650.00 9.650.00
9,650.00 9,650.00_
9.65,00,000 9.65,00.000
9.65,00.000 9,65,00,000

b. Terms/ rights attached to cquity shares:

i) The Cotupany has only one class of shares i.c. equity shares having par value of Rs 107- cach. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and entitled to receive dividends as declared from

time to time.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares wiil be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution

will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

t. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of the sharcholder % holding in the cquity

No. of shares

No. of shares

% holding in the

shares enquily shares
CMR Green Technologies Lid (e holding Conipany) 6,75,50.000 70.00% 6.75,50,000 70.00%
Toyola Tsusho Corporation 2.89,50,000 30.00% 2.89,50,000 30.00%
Total 9.65.00,000 100.00% 9,65,00,000 100.00%

d. The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash or as fully paid up by way of bonus shares. The Company has not bought back any

shares,

¢, Shares held by holding company

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of the shareholder % holding in the equity

% holding in the

No. of shares shares No. of shares cquity shares
CMR Green Technologies Lid (the hiotding Company) 6,75,50,000 70.00% 6,75.50,000 70.00%
f. Details of shares held by Promoters
Promoter Name bl\o: ni:shnru atthe Change during the  No. of shares at the end of o4 of Total Shares % change during the
eginning of the vear year the year vear
Toyota Tsusho Corporation 2,89.50,000 - 2,89,50,000 3000% -
As at March 31, 2024
. . ’ o, -
Promoter Name M_. u!:slmres at the Change during the  No. of shares at the end of o, of Total Shares /o change during the
Beginning of the year year the year year
CMR Green Technologies Ltd (the halding Company) 6,75.50,000 - 6,75.50,000 70.00% -
Toyata Tsusho Corporation 2,89.50,000 - 2,89,50,000 30.00% -
12(b}, Other cquity :
As at Asat
Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Retnined earnings:
Opening balance 10.254.22 8.944.17
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,748.15 1,304.97
Other comprehensive income for the year 3.31 5.08
Closing balance 12,005.68 10,254,22

Retained eamings refer to net eamings not paid out as dividends, but retained by the Company to be reinvested in its core business. This amount i3 available for distribution of dividends to its equity

sharcholders.

\\
ARl
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13. Borrowings
a) Details of borrowings are as follows:

From DBznks

Secured

Tenn loan from banks
Working capilal loan

Cash credit

Unsecured

Workiny: capital loan

Total

The above amount includes
Secured borrowing
Unsecured borrowing
Current maturity of Non-current borrowing
Net Amtount

2. Term loans from banks/ finnncial institution

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 iarch 31, 2024

600.53 1.201.08 . -
- . 10,980.00 3.500.00
- - 517.90 303.68
- - 4,000.00 2,500.00
600.53 1,201.08 15,497.90 6,303.68
600.53 1.201.08 11,497.50 3,803.68
- - 4,000.00 3,500.00
(600.53) {600.53) 00,53 600.53
- 600,55 16,098.43 6,904.21

The naturity profile, security and rate of interest of the above loans are as given below:

Loan

Loan Amount
(Antount in Iakhs}

Rate of Interest of borrowings
outstanding

Repayment Terms of
borrowings outstanding

Security for Lorrowings
outstanding

Indian Rupee Loan

HDFC Bank

March 31, 2025: Rs 600.53 Lacs
March 31, 2024: Rs 1,201.08
Lacs

8.34%-8.85%

The rerm loan is repayable in
equal quarterly installment of Rs
§50 lacs.

Refer Note a below

Notes: Term Loan from HDFC

a) Thie toan is sccured apainst first pari-passu charge over the entire fixed assets (MFA & IMFA) of the company, present and future including Equitable Mortgage of factory land and building at Plot
No A-4 & A-5 Sipeot Industrial Park, Pillaipakkamt, Chennai, Vallam and factory land at G-108 Pt. SIPCOT Industrial Park, Vallam - Vadagal. Chennai and collaterally secured by extension of
second pari-passu charge charge over current asscts of the company.

b) Second Pari Passu charge on the entire current assels of the company

Short Term Borrowings

The secarity and rate of interest of the above loans are as given below:

Loan

Amount

Ttate of Interest during the
period

Repayment terms

Security

Cash credit (secured)

State Bank Of India

March 31, 2025: Rs 102,48 lacs
March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil

8.70% 10.20%

Repayable on demand

Refer Mote | below

HDFC Bank

March 31, 2025: Rs 41542 lacs
‘March 31, 2024 - Rs. 303.69 lacs

9.60% - 9.70%

Repayable on demand

Refer Note 1 below

Working capital demand loans-Indian Rupces (sccurcd}

March 31, 2025: 2400 lacs

For a period not exceeding 3

{was unsecured previous year)

months frem drawdown date

. 9% . o, J
RBL Bank ‘March 31, 2024: Rs, 2400 Incs 7.30%-10.02% manths from drawdown date Rofer Note | below
. March 31, 2025: 1080 lacs o, o For a period not exceeding 3 i
HDFC Bank March 31, 2024: Rs. 1100 lacs 7.53% - 9.60% menths (rom drawdown date Refer Note 1 below
. . March 31, 2025: Rs 4000 lacs o o For a peried not exceeding 3
State Bank OF [ndia ‘March 31, 2024; NIL 770%7.85% months from drawdown date Refer Note | below
- . March 31, 2025: Rs 1000 lacs o o Far a period not exceeding 3 .
Axis Bank 'March 31, 2024: NIL 8.00%9.75% mpnths from drwdown date Refer Note 1 below
March 31, 2025: Rs. 2,500 Lacs For a period not exceeding 3
CTBC *March 31, 2024; Rs. 2,500 Lacs 7.55% - 1.65% P & Refer Note 1 below

Working Capifal Demand Loan (Unsecured)

Yes Bank

March 31, 2025: Rs 4000 lacs
‘March 31, 2024: NIL

7.33%7.88%

For a period not exceeding 3
months from drawdown date

Refer Note 2 below

Nature of Security .

1) 'Axis Ied Consortium of Bank whercin SBL, HDFC, Federal, Axis, RBL and CTBC are the member banks along with SBI Bank.
“a) First pari -passu charge on eatire current assets of CMR Toyotsu Aluminium Lndia Private Limited (both present and future) including hypotheeation of all stocks of rw materials, stores, spares.
stocks in process, finished goods, etc., lying in factory, go-downs, elsewhere and including goods in transit and reczivables / book debts.
1) Second pari-passu cliarge over the fixed assets of CMR Toyotsu Aluninium India Private Limited, including Equitable mortgage of factory land & building at Plot No. A4, A-5 SIPCOT
Industrial Park at Pillaipakkam, Sriperampudur, District Kanchipuram, Clhennai and equitable morigage of factory and land and building at G-108/2, Sipeot Industrial Park, Vallam-Vadagal, Chennai.
¢) Corporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologies Limited.
d) 75,00,000 shares of CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Pvi. L1d (shareholder is CMR Green Technolagies Limited are pledged with exclusive charge 1o SBIL
*CTBC Bank facilitics were secured during the year as CTBC Bank was inducted inte consurtivm during FY 24-25.

2} Yes Bank

The lacilities sanctioned by Yes Bank are unsecured.
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t4. Provisfons

Provision for employee benelits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashiment

15. Other current/non current liabilities

Statatory duces

Interest on income fax

Advance from Custotners

Finn commitment for purchase of inventory of raw materials
Liability towards Corparate Social Responsibility

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
53.05 48.07 234 17.96
- - 33.24 37.22
53.05 13.07 35.58 55.18
Non-current Current
As it Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
. . 24341 18134
- - 1.24 -
- - 98.31 4,299,57
- - 5586 -
- - 77.28 74.05
- - 476.10 5.154.96

The space has been left blank intentionally
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16, Trade payables

a} Detnils of trade payables is as follows:

Provision for taxation (net)

The spitce has been 1eft blank intentionally

Current
Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Trade payables
Dues to micro and sinall enterprises 93.83 39.17
Dues to others
-Related Parties (Refer Note 31) 3,081.98 569.75
-Others 1.734.13 1.377.15
Total 4,909.94 1,986.66
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilitics:
2) Trade payables (other than related panies) are non-interest bearing and are normally seutked on 0-60 days tenns.
b) For terms and conditions witli related panties, refer note 31
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Less than 1 Year|  1-2 Years 3.3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
Total owstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 9333 - - - 93.83
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than iicro enterprises and small enterprises 4,736.34 53.67 25.25 .85 4.816.11
Disputed dues of micro cnterprises and small enterprises - - . - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises . - - - -
Total 4.830.17 53.67 25.25 0.85 4,909.94
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than I Year] 1.2 Years 2-3 Yenrs | More than 3 Years Total
Total eutstanding duies of micro enterprises and small ENiCIprises 3917 - - - 39,17
Totnl outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises |.888.52 30.87 23.51 4.59 1,947 49
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of ereditors other than micro emerprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 1.927.69 30.87 23.51 4.59 1.986.66
17. Other financial liabilitics
a) Details of other financial linbilittes carried is as follows:
Current
Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
(i} Derivative instruments ot fair value through profit or Joss:
Mark to market loss on commodity futures- Payable 10 holding company - 097.46
{ii) Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost}
Sccurity deposits 13.60 13.66
Interest acerued bur not duc on borrowings 9.16 1291
Employee related payables 61.0t 63.78
Creditors for capital expenditure 128.09 146.56
231.92 334.37
b) Breakup of financial labilities at amortized cost:
Asat As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Barrowings (Refer to note 13} 16,098.43 7.980.23
Trade payables (Refer to note 16) 4,909.94 7.196.10
Other financial liabilitics 231.92 244,22
21,240.28 15,420.55
18, Current tax liabilities (net)
Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
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19, Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations

Sale of Products
Manufaciured goods
Traded poods

Otlier aperating revenue:
Sale of services*

Sale of Serap and others**
Export Incentive

Total revenue from operations

{2 Timinz of revenue recognition
Products transferred ot & point in time
Services rendered at a point in time
Total

(b) Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price

Revenue as per contracted price

Performance Obligation

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
1.33,299.58 1.11,882.23
3,283.32 521821
367.36 37017
22,961.10 20,102.32
69.83 200.03

1.59.981.19

1,37,772.96

1.59,544.00 1.37.202.76

367.36 37017
1.59.911.36 1.37.572.94
1.59.613.83 1,37.402.79

The Company recoghises revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, gencraily on delivery of the goods.
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the poods and payment is generally due within 0 to 90 days from delivery.

* Sale of services is in the nature of job wark executed.

*+ Sale of scrap and other is in the nature of scgregated scrap, 2sh and residue sales.

20. Other income

Interest on fixed deposils

Interest on receivabtes and others

Lease modification

Unrealised gain on commodiry future contracts {net}

Interes on balances of retated partics (Refer to Note 31)

Forward premium on realised and unrealised conunodity contracts
Tnterest on Income Tax

Exchange fluctuation (net)

21. Cost of material consumed
The details of cost of material consumed is as follows:

Row materials:

Opening stock

Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Closing stock

22, Purchase of Stock In Trade

Purchase of Traded Goods

23, Change in inventory of work in progress and Finished Goods

Opening stock:
Finished Goods
Less: Closing stock:
Finislied Goods

For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.80 2.34
15.24 265.81
26.20 -
67.38 0.32
10.00 40.36
32990 49.56
290 -
45.75 62.74
499.23 42113

For the year ended

For the year ended

Macch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
30113 8,000.54
1,43,482.13 1,16,900.32
(8.344.79) {8,017.13)
[,43,161.47 1.16,883,73
For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3.271.84 4,978.03
3,271.84 4.978.03
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
584.82 1,537.16
2,430.01 584.82
(1,845.19) 952.34
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24, Employce benelits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution 1o provident and otleer funds
Grawity

SeafT welfare expenses

Disclosure in compliance with Ind AS-19 on Empteyce Benefits has been given in Note 32

25. Finance cost

Interest on rupee tenn loans & others
Other finance costs

Interest to related parties (Refer Note 31}
Interest on lease liability

26. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of 1angible assets (Refer to note 3)
Depreciation on ROU assets
Amortization of intangible assets {Refer to note 4)

27, Other expenses

Power and fisel

Rent

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance of:

- Plant and equipment

- Buildings

= Othets

Printing: & stationery

Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance expenses

Payment to statutory auditor (Refer details below)
Vehicle nanning and maintenance

Freight and forwarding

Legal and professional

Stores & spares consumed

Packing material consumed

Management support fees

Commission on cusrency and commodity derivatives
Sates Commission

Bank charpes
Charity & Donation

Corporate Social Responsibility

Communicalion expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Detnits of payment made to auditors is as follows:

As audifor:

« Statutory audit fee
- Tax audit fee

- Qthers

Faor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
2.216.37 2,270.88
3537 39.95
16.82 16.69
187.97 224.20
2,456.53 2,551.72
For the year ended For the year cndfed
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
1.141.01 1,159.25
29.97 3104
217.75 796.88
10.53 28.98
1,399.26 2,016,15
For the year ended For the ycar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2023
§i,173.24 1.082.34
3736 78.97
- 0.62
1,210.60 1,166.93
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
447849 4,107.09
209.14 206.83
76.20 47.15
36.38 41.53
616.12 536.20
65.68 83.95
17.01 63.99
231 7.48
200.75 -
0.09 1.13
135.94 96.74
5.37 4.95
224 3.58
677.50 1.021.27
47.08 51.37
430.77 512
81.21 79.20
833.60 779.55
114.76 67.72
31446 265.02
8.12 12,77
- 025
36.93 46.05
11.09 10.25
85.45 83.36
8.486.71 B,139.55
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
4.62 4.20
0.50 0.50
0.25 0.25
537 4,95

a4
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28. Componcnts of other comprehensive Income

The disopgregation of changes to OCI by cach type of reserve En equity is shown below:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Jreans that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
Re-tneasurement gains on defined Lenefit plan 442 820
Income tax effect (L {2.06)
3.3t 6.13

29, Enrnings per share (EPS)
Basic and dituted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year atributable 1o equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
autstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are cafculated by dividing the profit attribuable to equity Lolders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period plus the weighted average number of cquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive polential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable 1o the equity holders 1,748.15 1,124.87
‘Weiphted average number of equily shares for basic and diluted EPS 9,65,00,000 9,65.00,000
Basic and diluted carnings per share {(face value INR 10 per share)* 1.81 1.17

*There is no convertible share hence, diluted EP3 is equal to Basic EPS
# This is calculated on the basis ol quarterly profits , which are not annualized.
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30. Commitment and Contingencies

A. Capital and Other Commitrments

Particulars Asat Asat
Macch 31,2025 March 31,2024
Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not 117 -
provided For.
B. Contingent lEabilitics
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Contingent liability on account of legal case in Madras High court filed by ex-workers of the cotnpany. 61.35 61.35
Custanding guarantee fumished by bank on behalf of the company in respeet of provisional assessment of| 132.13 132,13
Cuistom duty to Custam Depanment
~ Demand rised by Sales TawvVAT authority during the assessmeni for F.Y. 2015-16 1215 12.15
Demand raied Urs 68 of Income Tax Act for AY 21.22 437.25 437.25
~OI0 Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD330424239418E dated 29/0472024. issue 110.62 -
regarding Tox difrance GSTR 9 Vs GSTR 1. EWaybill Vs GSTR 9. Excess [TC Taken in RCM, GSTR 2A
Vs GSTR 3B, and Block Credit under section 17(5) for the peried April 2018 1o March 2019 uw/s 73 CGST
ACT and Rules 2017
OLO Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued Order Reference No.: ZD330824294927Q dated 30-08-2024. 329.96 -
issue regarding Excess ITC Taken in RCM, GSTR 2A Vs GSTR 3B, and Black Credit under scction 17(5)
for the period April 2019 to March 2020 w's 73 CGST ACT and Rules 2017
Vehicle detained by sizte lax officer Under section 129 & 130 of the GST Act 2017 against it we have 14.50 -
submitted bank guarantee of Rs 14.5 Lacs
C. Guarantees
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 Mlarch 31, 2024
Bank puaraniees issued by bank 143.06 132.13
Total 143.06 132.13
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31, Related Party Transactions

In accordance with {he requirements of IND AS -24 "Related Party Disclosures’ , names of the related partics, related party relationship,
transactions and outstanding batances where control exsists and with whom transactions have taken place during the period are:

(i) Names of related partics and related party relationship
(2) Key management personnel and their relatives
Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala - Director [resigned w.e.f09.10.2023]
Mr. Mohan Agarwal - Director
Mr. Yosunobu Machida - Director {w.¢.f, 131th April 2022 and resigned w.e.f. 041h Aug, 2023)
Mr. Raghav Apgarwal- Chief Financial Ollicer
Mrs. Suman Bala- Director [Resigned w.e.f 22 September 2023)
Mr Shreechandra Singh Rana - Chicf Executive Officer [w.c.f 10 Dec, 2021, resipned we.l. 30.09.2024]
Ms. Neetam- Company - Secretray [w.e.F01st August 2022, resigned w.c.f, 29.08.2024]
Ms. Ridhima Bagla - Director {w.c.f 11 October 2023]
Mr. Yasutomo Inuki - Director [w.c.f. 05th August, 2023]
Mr. Akshay Aganwal - Director [w.c.f. 11th October, 2023]
Ms. Ayushi Verma- Company Sceretary [w.e.f. 12.11.2024)
Mr, Sumit Gupta- CEC (w.c.f. 01.03.2025]

(b} Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiaries & Associates
() Tolding Company:-
CMR Green Technologies Limited

(if) Fellow Subsidiaries (Subsidiary of Holding Company):-
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Private Limited
CAMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited (disinvestment w.c.f. 01.07.2024)
CMR Welfare Foundation
CMR Green LLC- (w.¢.f. (2.08.2023)

() Assotiate of Holding company:-
CMR Cliiho Industries India Pvt. Lid.
CMR-Chillo Recycling Technologics Private Limited
Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private Limietd

(d) Joint Venturc Pariner
Toyota Tsusho Corporation

(¢) Subsidinries of Joint Venture Partner
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited

{f) Enterprises under same control
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited
KGS Partners LLP
KGS Partners
GSK Partners

The space has been left blank intentionally
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(ii) The foltowing table provides the total value of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Particulars

Key management personnel & their

relatives

Holding

Fellow Subsidiarics, joint venture
partincr, enterprises under same
control

For the year

For the year

ended March 31,] ended March 31,

2025

2024

For the year
ended March 31,

2025

For the year
cnded March
31,2024

Foy the year
ended March 31,
2025

For the year
ended March
3t, 2024

Transactions during the period:
Sale of zoods

CMR Green Technotogies Limited
CMR Nikkei India Peivate Limited
CMR Aluminium Pv1. Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Ltd
Toyola Tsusho Corporalion

3,601.69

3249.12

652,96
919,73
5.285.10
1,436.05

534.76
515.45
4,120.94
6,360.20

Sale of Store Item

CMRB Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Pvt. Limited
CMR Eco Alwminium Pyt Ltd
MR Green Technologties Linited

3.40
1.59
5.65

7.09

1.97

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvi Ltd

CMR Green Technolopies Limited

13.09

8.00
232

450

Purchase of goods

CMR Green Technologics Limited

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Pvi. Limited

CMR Eco Aluminium Pyt Lid

CMR Green LLC

Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private Limited

40.762.80

1,585.34

96.19
9,201.73
36.38
133.17

1,139.07
984.66

2,023.52

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
CMR Green Technologies Limited

CMR Aluminium Pvi, Limited

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

.56
.46

Purchases of Store Items

CMR Green Technologies Limited
CMR Alusinium Pyt Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Lid
CMR Nikkei India Pvi Ltd

1.89
0.70
4.45

Expenses matle by others on hehalf of us
CMR Nikkei India Pvi Ltd

CMR Eco Aluminium Private Limited
CMR Green Technolopies Limited

Exjienses made an hehalf of Co,
CMR Green Teclmologies Limiled
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Ltd
CMR Aluminium Pvi. Limited
CMR Nikkei India Pyt Ltd

.59
0.12
0.04

Manapament support fees
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited

CMR Green Technolopies Limited

1,063.20

79.28

Interest Received
CMR Aleminium Pyt. Limited

Saniivani Metal Trading Private Limited

40.36

Commodity & Derintives (Gnin/fLoss)
CMR Green Teclnolopies Limited

1.276.46

Interest Paid

Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Lid

CMR Nikkei Indéa Pvt Lid

CMR Green Technolopics Limited

581.91

32.01
13.90
169.05

FRN
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Particulars

Key management personnel & their

relatives

Holding

Fellow Subsidiaries, joint venture

partner, enterprises under same

control

Far the year
ended March 31,
2025

For the ycar
ended March 31,
2024

For the year

cnded March 31,

2025

For the year
caded March
31,2024

ended March 31,

For the year

2025

For the year

ended March

31,2024

Freight Expenses
Tovota Tsusho India Private Limited

2.85

5.2

Sitting fees

Suman Bala

0.02

Remuneration paid

Ayushi Verma
Neelam Malik
Sumit Gupta
S5 Rana

1.99
1,97
2.17
60.19

4.00

65.00

orporate Social Responsibility
CMR welfare Foundation

105.80

Job work Reccived
|CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Lid

36.62

(iil) Balastees as at the year end

Particulars

Rey management personnel & their

relatives

Holding

Fellow Subsidinrics, jolnt venture

partner, enterprises under same

control

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

March 31,2025

Asat

Asat

Mareh 31, 2024

Trade pavables
Nikkei CMR Aluminium Indin Private lintited

CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

CMR-Chiho Recycling Technaloyy Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium India Pyt Lid

Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited

124,09
1.847.89
0.24
1.099.82

548.20
0.24

2131

Pavable_te holding company en acconnt of outsiandin terivative
contracis

CMR Green Technolopies Limited

9746

Receivable from holding comnany on necount of ouistanding
derivative contracts
CMR Green Technolopies Limited

131.43

Advance From Customer
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminium India Pvi Lid

4.258.29

Atlvance to Supplier
CMR Green Technologics Limited

1.920.19

Trade Reccivable

CMR Chiho industries India Pvr Lid
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Ingia Pyt Lid

21.79
23.65
128.22

21.79
2755
3401

Caorporate Guaraniee piven an beltalf of the company by :-

utstanding ag at the tinz period
CMR Green Technolopies Limited

13.585.00

15.585.00

Notes:-
Terms and conditions of transactions with rlated partics
Notes:

The sale and purchase from related parties are madc an 1enns equivalent to those that prevail in
ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating
related party receivable and payable. This assessment i underiaken each financial peried th

party operates.

army's kength tronsaction. Quistanding talances ar the period end ar¢ unsecured. For the periood
1o amounts owed by refated parties. There has been no guarantee provided or received for any
rough examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related
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32, Employee benelits

Defined Contribution Plans - General Desceintion

Provident Fund:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund/ pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute & specified pereentage of payroll cost, as
specified in the rules of the schemes, to the defined contribution scheme.

) For the year ended Far the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Employers contribution 1o Provident fund (inciuding Employec's
Pension Scheme 1995) 34.09 37.78
Total 34.09 37.78

* net of benefit of Rs Nil (March 31, 2024: Nil) reccived under Pradhian Mantri Rojpar Prosthan Yojna and Rs Nil (March’24- Rs 2.08 Lacs) 1owards Aaunanicbhar Bharat Rozgar
Yojana (ABRY)

Defined Benefit Plans - General Description
Gratuitv:

The gratvity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972. Under the Aci, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specilic benefit. The level
of benefit provided depends on the member's Jength of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit cquivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for eacl
completed year of service with pant thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on tenmination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlicr.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit eredit method,
which recopnizes cach period of service as giving risc to additional unit of employce benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligations are measured al the present value of the estimated future ¢ash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans is based on the marker vields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses {net of tax} are rccognized immediately in the Other
Compreliensive Income (OCI).

The following tables swnmarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statenent of profit or loss and amoums recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity

plan:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) {Unflunded)
Change in benefit obligation
Present value of oblipation as at the beginning of the year 66.04 58.67
Acquisition adjustment - -
Current service cost 12.08 1237
Add: Past service cost . -
Add: Interest cosi 4.78 432
Add: Actuarial {gain) / loss (4.42) {8.20)
Less: Benefits paid {23.07) {1.12)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 55.39 66,04
Linbility/ (Asset) recognized in the financial statemenis 5539 66.04
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Parficulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 12.08 12.37
Inierest cost an benelit obligaion 478 432
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 16.85 16.69
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Actuarial changes arising [fom changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial changes arising [rom changes in financial asswnptions 245 0.99
Experience adjusiments (6.87) (2.19)
Amount of loss recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (4.42} (8.20)

The space has been Icft blank intentionally




CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial stafements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company's plans are shown below:

Digcount rate (%) 6.93 7.23
Expected rate of retum on Plan assets (%) - -
Future salary increases (%) 8,00 8.00
Retirement Age (Years) 60 GO
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 vears 3% 1%
From 31 to 44 years % %
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Monality table 100% of IALM (2012-2014)
A quantitative sensitivity enalysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2025 is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan (Amount in Rs. lakhs)
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary Inerease
Discount rate 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit oblipation (4.22) 4.70 398 (3.53)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan (Amount in Bs, lakhs)
March 31,2024 March 31,2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary inerease
Discount rate 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% Deccrense
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.92) 4.37 3.32 {3.69)

The sensitivity analyses above has been detennined based on the mebiod thar extrapolates the impact on defined benrefin obligation as a resule of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at 1he end of the reporting period.

Sengitivitics dug to mortality and withdrzwals are not material and hence impact of change ot caleulated. Sensitivities as (o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
payimnents, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The fellowing payments are expected confributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

March 31, 2024

Rs,
17.96
Q.75
0.81
0.85
0.90
0.85
43.91

March 31, 2025
Rs,
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting peniod) 2.34
Beiween 1 and 2 years 0.81
Belween 2 and 3 years ’ 0.86
Between 3 and 4 years 0.97
Belween 4 and 5 years 097
Between 5 and 6 years 0.96
Beyond 6 years 48.47
Total expecied payments 55.39

66.03

The average duration of the defined benefil plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 19.97years.
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33. Fair values
Set oui below, is o comparison by class of the camying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

Carrving value Fair value
Asat Asat Asat As at
Aiareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assels

A. FYTPL financiol instruments &

Derivative Asset - - - -
B. Amertized Cost:

Loan to employess 3.89 513 389 5.13
Security depasils 159.54 18345 15954 183.45
Non Current Fixed deposits - 20.28 - 20.23
Total 163.43 208.87 163.43 208.87
Financinl liabilities
A.FVTPL:
Derivative liabilities - - - -
B. Amortized Cost:

Borrowings 609.53 1.201.08 600.53 1,201.08

600.53 1.201.08 600.53 1.201.08

The management assessed the trade receivables, capisal creditors, trade payables and other financial pssets and liabilitics (except derivatives and liabilitics) approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used 1o estimate the fair values :-

Derivative financial instruments -
The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is detenmined using the foreign exchange spot and fonvard rates at the balance sheet date.
The derivatives are entered into with the banks / counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

Borrowings:-
The fair values of thie Company's interest bearing bomowings are detersnined by using discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowiny rate as at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments, loan to employees, sccurity deposits and Interest acerued on fixed deposits:-
The fair value of investments in other equity instruments, loan 1o employees, security deposit and interest accrued on fixed deposits approximates the carrying valuc and hence, the valuation technique and
tnputs have not been given.
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34. Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognized or disclosed are categorized within the Fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole,

Level 1: This level of hierrehy includes financial assets that are measured by reference 1o quoted (inadjusted) prices in active inarkets for identical assels or liabilitics,

Level 2: This level of hicrarchy includes financial assets that arc measured using inputs, other ikan quoted prices included within fevel 1, that are observable for such
items, directly or indirectly.

Level 3: This level of hierarcly includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supporied by prices from observable curmrent
market transactions in the same instruments nor based on available market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of e Company's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures falr value measurement hierarchy for assels as at March 31, 2025:

Fair valuc measurement using

Date of valuztion Total Quoted prices in Significant Signilicant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
{Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Finaneial assets
A, Amortized Cost:

Loan to employees March 31, 2025 3.89 - 3.89 -
Security deposit Mlarch 31, 2025 159.54 - 159.54 -
Total 163.43 - 163.43 -
Finzncial liabilities
A. Amartized Cost;

Bormowings March 31, 2025 600.53 - 600.53 -
Total 600,53 - G00.53 -

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2025.

Quantitative disclosures falr value mensurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Guoted prices in Significant Signilicant
active markets  observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Finanginlasscts
A FYTPRL financial instruments
Derivative Asset March 31,2024 - - - -
B. Amortized Cost:
Lean to employees March 31,2024 513 - 513 -
Securily deposit March 31,2024 18345 - 18345 -
Non Current Fixed deposits March 31,2024 20.28 - 20.28 -
Total 208.86 - 208.86 -
Financia! linbilitics
A, Amortized Cost:
Bomowings March 31,2024 1.201.08 - 1.201.08 -
Tolal 1.201.08 - 1,201.08 -

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2024
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35, Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities cemprise of trade payables, other payables, security deposils received, capital creditors and employce related payables. The main purpose of these financial
linbilities is to nance the Company's operations and to provide guaraniees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and ather receivables, and cash and cash
equivalent that detive directly from its operations. The Company also cnters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market isk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is responsible to
ensure that Company’s financial risk activities which are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative octivities for risk management purposcs arc carried out by specialist tcams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the
Company's policy that no trding in derivatives for speculalive purposes may be undenaken. The Board of Directors revicws and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

ivarket risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instnument will fluctuate because of change in markel price. Market risk comprise of interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk

and commodity risk.

The seasitivity analysis in the foliowing sections relate 1o the position as at March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024,

(n) Interest rate risk

tterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value o future cash Mows of a financial instrument will fluctuaic because of changes in market interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables lield constant, the Company’s profit before tox
is affected through the impact on fAoating rae borrowings, as follows:

(Amount in Rs.lnkhs)
Increase/ decrease  Effect on profit
in basis points before tax

US dollar Borrowings
March 31, 2025
USD Borrewings +H.5 -
LISD Borrowings 0.5 .
March 31, 2024
USD Bormrowings +0.5 -
USD Borrowings 0.5 -

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
Fair value sensitivity anatysis for fixed rate instruments :-

The Company does not have any fixed ratc financial assels and labilities a1 fair value Wrouph profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest raies at the reporting date would neither affect profit or loss
nor aflect cquity.

{1y Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to forgigh exchange risk anising from foreign currency transactions primarily with respect to USD, EUR & CNY. Foreign exchange sisk arises from future commercial
transactions and recogmized asset and liabilities denaminated in a cumrency that is not the Company's functional currericy. The Company imports raw rmaterials and capital goods which exposes it 1o
foreign currency risk. The Company holds derivative foreign currency forward contracts to mitigaie the risk of change in exchange rate on forcign currency exposurc. The following tables demonstrate
the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR & CNY exchange rates, with all giher variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and Habilities.

Change in USD Elfect on profit Changein  Effect on profit Changein  Effcet on profit
rate before tax EUR rate before tax CNY ralc before tax
Rs.
31-Mar-25 +5% 57.10 31-Mar-25  +5% - 31-Mar-25 +5% -
5% (57.10) -5% - -5% -
34-Mar-24 +5% - 31-pMar24 +5% - J1-Mar-24 +5% -
-5% - 5% - -5% -

{c YCommodity price risk

The Campany is affected by the price volatility of certain commaditics. The eperating setivitics of the Company require the ongoing purchase of steel, cooper and aluminium. The Company is not
exposed to commodity price tisk as any change in the price of commodity s subsequently recovered by the Company from ils customers, thus safeguarding itself from any change in the price of
commodity

() Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a (inancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial Joss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the expesure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

(i) Teade reecivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy. procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating scorecard and individua) credit limits are defined in accordance with flis assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individua! basts for major clicnts. The calculation is based on cxchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
thie reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does nat hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect
to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.
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The ageing of trade reccivables at the reporting date was:

(Amount in 1ts. lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
0- 180 days 15,941.90 11.880.87
Above 180 days 64.18 69.86

"The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at darch 31, 2025

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2025
Interest acerued but not received 3.50
Security Deposits ( Current & Non-current) 159.54
Loan to cmployees 3.89
Trade receivables 16.006.08

The Company manitors ils risk of a shortage of funds daing a liquidity planning exercise.

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short term borrowing facilitics like bank overdraft, cash credit facility and buyers credit
facility. The Company’s treasury function reviews the liquidity position on an ongoing basis. The Company assessed e coacentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be
low. The Company lias aceess 1o a sullicient variety of sources of funding and surplus casls and cash cquivalent on the basis of expected cash flow. The able below summarizes the maturity profile of
the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment :

As at March 31,2025 {Amount in Rs, lnkhs)
Particulars On demand Less than [2 1-5years >5 years Total
months
Borrowings 517.90 15,580.53 - 16,098.43
Security deposit from customers/ others - 13.66 - - 13.66
Interest acerued bui not due on borrowings - 29.16 - - 29.16
Employce related liabilities - 61.01 - - 61.0t
Payable for capital goods . 128.09 - - 128.09
Trade pavables - 4.909.94 - - 4.909.94
517.90 20,722.38 - - 21.240.28
Asat March 31,2024 {Amount in Rs. Iakhs)
Particulars On demand Lcess than 12 1-5 years >5 years Total
months
Borrowings 303.68 5.999.98 600.55 - 6.904.21
Security deposit from customers/ olliers - 13.66 - - 13.66
Interest accrued but not due on bommowings - 1291 - - 1291
Employee related liabilities B 63.78 . - 63.78
Payabte for capital goods - 146.56 - - 146.56
Trade pavables - 1.986.66 - - 1.986.66
303.68 8.223,55 600.55 - 9,127,783
Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activilics, of activities in the same geographical region, of lrave economic features that would cause their ability 10
mcet contractual abligatiens to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or othier conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance 1o development
affecting a particular industry. The Company is 10t exposed 1o cxcessive conceniration since the customers of the Company are nol engaged in similar business activitics. The Company has a strong
customer base and derives its revenues from many customers belonging to different industries and corresponding trade receivables are from varied number of customers.
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36, Sepment information

As per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments™, identification of segment is based on the manner in which the entity’s Chief Operating Decision makers' (CODM) review the

business components repularly to make Decisions about allocating resources to segment and in assessing its perfonnance.

The Chicl Operating decision maker reviews business perfonnance al an overall Company level as ane segment "Aluminium ingots and molding”

a) Summary of total revenue by Geographical area for the period cnded March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Products and services

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024

Revenue From External Customers
India 1,57.461.19 1,29.458.08
Quiside India 2.520.00 8.314.88
Total 1,59.981.19 1,37,772.96
1) Summary of non- current assels by geographieal focation is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 3, 2025 Mareh 31,2024

Property plant and equipment
India 10.667.23 10.343.17
Quiside India - -
[ntanpible
Ingdia - -
Quiside India - -
Capital Work-in-propress
India 39.35 370.98
Qutside India - -
Intongible under development
India - -
OQuiside India - .
Other Non currcnt assels
india 703.61 701.30
Ouwtside India - h
Tatal 1141019 12,415.45

¢} Revenue from major cusionier

Revenue fromt major customers with percentage of total revenue are as below:-

Nare of The Customer For the vear ended March 31, 2025 Far the vear ended March 31, 2024
Revenue Revenue Ya Revenue Revenue %

Endurance Technoloptes Lid. 28,892.49 18.06% 23.276.25 16.89%

India Yamaha Moter Pvt. Lid. 20,551.98 12.85% 18.081.28 13.12%
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36 (). Ratio Analysis and its elements:

Ratio Numterator BDenominater March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 | % change |Explanation for the change in the ratio by
more than 25% as comparcd o previows
year

Current ratio Current Assels Current Liabilitics 1.47 1.61 -8.86%| Not Applicable

Debt- Equity Ratio | Total Debt Shareholder's Equity - Effective [Ad] 0.36 96.25%)| Increase is mainly due 10 decrease in

portion of cash flow hedge debt during the current year
reserve
Debt Service Eamings for debt service = [Debt service = Interest a3 1.20]  +74.36%|Decrease is mainly due to principal repayment
Coverage ratio Net profit afler taxes + Non- | Payments + Principal during the current year
cash operating expenses Repavments

Retum on Equity | Net Profirs after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity - 0.02 001 99.46%| Increase in mainly on account of increase in

ratio Effective portion of cash flow profit

hedge reserve

Inventory Tumover |Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 14.12 1298 8.75%|Not Applicable

ralio

Trzde Receivable  |Net sales = Total sales - sales |Averape Trade Receivable 11.44 12.26 -6.69%| Not Applicable

Tumover Ratio el

Trade Payable Net Purchases = Taal Avcrage Trade Payables 43.40 25.80 61.93%]Increase is mainly due to increaed in profit

Tumover Ralio Purchases - purchases retumn during the cument year

Net Capital Net sales = Total soles - sales |Working capital = Current 1574 15.56 1.14%| Not Applicable

Tumover Ratio retum asscts — Current liabilities

Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 0.01 0.01 9.27%|Not Applicable

feltim
Retum on Capital | Eamings before interestand | Capital Employed = Tangible 0.10 012y -19.88%|Naot Appticable
Employed 1axes Net Worth + Total Debi -

Intangbile assets including

Goodwill
Returmn on Net Profit Invesiment N/A N/A NAl-

Investment
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37. Capital Management

The Board's policy maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and maskel confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. The Board
of Directors monitor the return an capital employed as well as the level of dividend to sharchotders.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and general reserves attributable to the equity holders, The primary objective
of the Company’s capital management is to maximize (e shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. )

The Company moniters capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Cotpany includes within net debt, intercst bearing loans
and borrowings, trade and other payables, fess cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars

Borrowings (Refer to note 13 & 17)

Trade payaliles (Reler to note 16)

Other financials tiabilities (Refer 1o note 17)

Less: Cash and ¢ash equivalents (Refer to niote 11(i))
Net debt

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total Capital
Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

16,698 96 8,105.29
4.909.93 1,986.66
23192 334.37

(37.61) {49.58)
21,803.20 10.376.76
9,650.00 9.650.00
13,136,711 t1,385.25
22,786.71 21.035.25
44,589.91 41201

18.90% 33.03%

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the periods end March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

38. In light of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has spent/provision for Rs 3693 Lakhs on account of Comomte Social

Responsibilities (CSR).

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

(n) Gross amount required to bie spent

36.93

52.37

(b) Amount spent on;

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above

(iii} Unspent amount to be tansferred 1o a speeific fund account

36.93

52.37

(c} Detai! of related panty transactions out of (b) above:

= CMR Welfare Foundation

39.00

105.80

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had amended Section 135 of the Com
Sub-Section {5} of Section 135 which states that any amount remainin

panies Act 2013 vide The Companies (Amendment} Act 2020, whergin a proviso was added 1o
B unspent under section 135 (5), pursuant to any engoing projest, fulfilling such conditions as may be

prescribed, undertaken by a company in pursuance of its Corporate Social Respensibility Policy, shall be transferred by the company within a period of thirty days from the

end of the financial year 1o a special account to be opened by the company in that behalf for thar financial year in any se
Social Responsibility Account, and such amount shiall be spent by the company in pursuance of its obligation towards ¢
period of three financial years from the date of such wansfer, failing which, the company shall transfer the same to a
thiny days from the date of completion of the third financial year. Accordingly, the Company had made provision of

year and Rs. 36.93 laes during the current year.

The Company has during the current year transferred an amount of Rs. 36.93 lacs 10 specified bank accouni.

heduled bank 1o be called the Unspent Corparate
he Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a
und specificd in Schedule VII, within a period of
unspent amount of Rs 52.37 lacs during the previous

In Separate CSR Unspent
Particulars Ale
Onening Balance 21.68
Amount transferred to scparate CSR Unspent Ale 52.317
Amount speat during the period 33.67
Closing Balance 4038
Detalls related to unspent obligations:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance in separate CSR unspent account 40.36 21.68
Unspent amount to be transferred 10 a specified find aceoun 36.93 52.37
13,29 74.05
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39. Details of ducs to micro and smal) enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Thie principal aitouni and the interest due Uiercon remaining unpaid to anv supplier as at tlie end of each accountine period 93.83 39.17
The amount of interest paid by the buver in tenms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the - -
The amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
The amount of interest accnued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounling vear - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are aclually paid 1w the small enterprise for the purposc of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of]
the MSMED Act 2006
40. Disciosure of Leases
Opcrating lease : company as lessee
The Company has entered into opernting leases for fictory land & buildings b lease terms from one year o five years.
The Company has utilised hindsight in detennining the lease tenms where contrecls contained opticns to extend or terminale the lease.
Initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
The weighted average of Company's incremental borrowing rate applicd to lease liobilities at the date of initial application was 9.00%.
The Company has entered into company leases for factory land & buildings with lease terms of Five years.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-usc assets recognised and the movements during the year:
Particulars Factory land and Lease Hold land
building
As at April 01, 2023 - 016.74
Addition 416.09 -
Depreciation expense for the period frem April 01, 2023 1o March 31, 2024 6935 9.62
As at March 31, 2024 346.74 207.12
Addition - 850.85
Depreciation expense for the period from April 01, 2024 10 March 31, 2025 27.74 9.62
Dreletion due to modification of lease 31901 .
As at Mareh 31, 2025 - 1,748.35
Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilitics and the movements during the year:
Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2024 366.82
Addition
Accretion of interest for (he period from April 2024 to March 2025 10.53
Payments for the period from Apeil 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 32.09
Detetion due to modification in lease 345.27
As nt March 31, 2025 -
Current lease tiabilties -
Non-Current leasc liabiltics .
Considering the leasc tenn of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is considered at 9%
Undiscounted Iease liabilities are as follows:
Particulars On demand Less than 12 1-5 years »>5 years Total Carrying
amount of
liabilitics
As at March 31, 2025 - - . - - -
As at March 31,2024 - 97.82 342.82 - . N
Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is considered at 9%.
Tie follawing are the amounts recopnised in statement of profit and toss for the peiod/year :
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 37.36 78.97
Inlerest expense on lease lizhilitics 10.53 2898
Shart Term and warehouse lcase 5.98 1.81
Total amount recopnised En profit or loss 53.88 109.76
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d1. The Contpany has used accouning sofiware Infor LN and Payroll soflware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
lias operated throughout the year for all relevant iransactions recorded in (he sofiware, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain master tables and direct changes to the underlying
database using privileged/ adiministrative access rights in respect of Infor LN. Funher. no instance of awdit trail fuature being ampered with, in respect of accounting software where the audit
trail has been enabled. The audir trail has been preseted by the company for these software as per the statutary vequirement For record retention.

42, Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranyed wherever required.

43.The Indian Partiament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020 which will impact (e contribwtions / provision by the Company 1owards Provident Fund and gratuity. The effective
date from which the chanpes are applicable is yet (o be novified and the rules for qualifying ke financials impact are yel to be framed. Based on Uie initial assessment by the Company, (he
atditional impacr on Provident Fund coniributions by the Company is not expected to be material. whereas the likely additiona! impact on gratuity liabilily by (he Company could be material.
The Company will complete their evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the code becomes effective and the related rules to determine
the financial inpact are published.

4. Cther Statatory Infonmation

(i) The Company do not kave any Benami propeny, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do ot have any iransactions with conipanies simck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charpes or satisfaction which is yet to be regestered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invesied in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not made any loans or advanced in the nature of loans are granted to promaters. directors. KMPs and related partics (as defined under Comnpanigs Act, 2013,) either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

a) repayable on demand or

b) withowr specifying any teans or period of repayment

(vi} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies). including foreipn entitics (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Iniennediary
shalk:

o) directly or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b) provide any guaraniee, security or the like to or on behall of the Ulimate Beneficiarics;

(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntities (Funding Party) with (e understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or:

b) provide any puarantee, sceurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{viii) The Company have ol any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been survendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any ather relevam provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of CMR TOYOTSU ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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